ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 4, 2011
5:04 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Alan Dick, Chair
Representative Lance Pruitt, Vice Chair
Representative Eric Feige
Representative Paul Seaton

Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Scott Kawasaki

VMEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Sharon Ci ssha
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senator Fred Dyson

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 145

“An Act establishing the parental choice scholarship program to
be adm nistered by school districts for the purpose of paying
the cost of attending grades kindergarten through 12 at public
and private schools; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 16
Proposi ng anmendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to state aid for education.
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 145

SHORT TITLE: K-12 SCHOLARSHI P PROGRAM
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLER

02/ 09/ 11 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 09/ 11 (H) EDC, FIN
03/ 25/ 11 (H) EDC AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -1- April 4, 2011



03/ 25/ 11 (H)
03/ 25/ 11 (H)
04/ 04/ 11 (H)

BILL: HIR 16

Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( EDC)
EDC AT 5: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

SHORT TITLE: CONST. AM EDUCATI ON FUNDI NG
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLER

02/ 09/ 11 (H)
02/ 09/ 11 (H)
03/ 25/ 11 (H)
03/ 25/ 11 (H)
03/ 25/ 11 (H)
04/ 04/ 11 (H)

W TNESS REG STER

READ THE FI RST TI ME -
EDC, JUD, FIN
EDC AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( EDC)

EDC AT 5:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

REPRESENTATI VE WES KELLER
Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:
of each bill.

RONALD PAI NTER
Kodi ak, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

MARI A PAI NTER
Kodi ak, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

JESSI CA DEAN
Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

M CHELLE N LAND
Wasil | a, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

BARBARA HANEY
North Pol e, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

CHERYL PEYTON

Eagl e River, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE

REFERRALS

Presented HB 145 and HIJR 16 as the sponsor

Testifi

Testifi

Testifi

Testifi

Testifi

Testifi

ed in

ed in

ed in

ed in

ed in

ed in

support of

support of

support of

HB

HB

HB

opposition to

support of

support of

HB

HB

145.

145.

145 and HIR 16.

HB 145.

145.

145.

April 4, 2011



JOHN TOBEY
Eagl e River, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:

ANDY CLARY
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

NEI L NI CHOLS
Eagl e River, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

ROBERT Tl MM NS
Eagl e River, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

KRI STI NA JOHANNES
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

SHI RLEEN RANNALS
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

CYNTHI A GEl ERMANN
Bi g Lake, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

KARI N ONENS
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

Testifi

Testifi

Testifi

Testifi

Testifi

Testifi

Testifi

Testifi

CONNI E W NGREN, Pri nci pa
Hol y Name Cat holic School

Ket chi kan, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

DAVI D BOYLE
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

TI' M GEI ERVANN
Bi g Lake, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

Testifi

Testifi

Testifi

ed i

ed i

ed i

ed i

ed i

ed i

ed i

ed i

ed i

ed i

ed i

CARL RCSE, Executive Director
Associ ati on of Al aska School

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE

Boar ds ( AASB)

- 3-

support

support

support

support

support

support

support

support

support

support

support

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

of

HB 145.

HB 145

HB 145.

HB 145.

HB 145

HB 145

HB 145

HB 145.

HB 145.

HIR 16.

HB 145.

and HIR 16.

and HIR 16.

and HIR 16.

and HIR 16.

Apri |

4, 2011



Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 145 and
HIR 16.

JULI E ZERKEL
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 145.

KATHRYN BOLAK
Chugi ak, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 145.

BETTY SM TH
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 145.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
5:04: 32 PM

CHAIR ALAN DICK called the House Education Standing Conmttee
neeting to order at 5:04 p.m Representatives Dick, Kawasaki,
Wl son, Seaton, and Feige were present at the call to order.
Representative Pruitt arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 145- K-12 SCHOLARSHI P PROGRAM
HIR 16- CONST. AM EDUCATI ON FUNDI NG

CHAIR DI CK announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 145, "An Act establishing the parental choice
schol arship program to be adm nistered by school districts for
the purpose of paying the cost of attending grades kindergarten
through 12 at public and private schools; and providing for an
effective date", and HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 16, Proposing
amendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska relating
to state aid for education.

5:05:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WES KELLER, Al aska State Legislature, stated that
t he purpose of HB 145 was to provide public funding for the cost
of attending grades kindergarten through 12 at a public or
private school selected by the student's parent of |egal
guar di an. He clarified that, as the Alaska State Constitution
did not allow funding for private schools, HIR 16 offered an

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -4- April 4, 2011



anendnent to the Alaska State Constitution for funding to
private school s.

5:07:32 PM

CHAIR DI CK expressed his concern for what would happen to the
many students who remained in public schools, specifically
speci al education and discipline problem students who nmay not be
admtted into the private school s.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER replied that parents of children wth
speci al education needs would be able to select the school that
could best serve their child. He explained that any school
could be a participating school.

5:08:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON inquired whether all schools would be
required to provide the sanme services as a public school if they
recei ved public funding.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER replied that it would be a mtter of
parental choice for where their child would receive the best
servi ce.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON stated that a public school had
mandated services, which nmay not be available at a private

school, but that the private school would still receive the
f undi ng.
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER replied that the proposed bill provided

funding to the district to be paid to the school of choice "for
a simlarly situated student.™

5:11: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KAWASAKI asked that if a school was based on a
nodel such as Sharia Law, or an economc theory based on
Communi sm woul d that be an acceptabl e public expense.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER replied that should enough parents want to
send their child to the school, it should be able to exist and
be supported wth the funding allocated to their child's
att endance.

5:12:50 PM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 5- April 4, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON asked what options existed for students
in the rural areas. She opined that the proposed bill primarily
supported students in the RailBelt.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER replied that the proposed bill did not
favor any areas. He stated that the coalition supporting HB 145
had many Al askan Native and rural supporters. He offered his
belief that there were opportunities for rural comunities to
create private schools to enphasize immersion into native
| anguage.

5:14:32 PM

RONALD PAINTER asked that the commttee support HB 145. He
st at ed:

This is wthout a doubt the best thing we could do to
i nprove education for our children in the shortest
time. Nati onw de, we spend nore noney now than any
country except one, and we rank anong the |owest of
all industrialized nations for education. More noney
for public education is not the answer. HB 145 will
go a long ways to solve those problens. Pl ease
support this.

MARI A PAINTER said that all four of her children had attended
par ochi al school and that she supported HB 145.

5:16:14 PM

JESSI CA DEAN said that she had two children enrolled in private
school, while dually enrolled in a district correspondence
school . She opined that many private schools offered solutions

for student needs, and she stated her support for HB 145 as a
solution to the current school problens.

5:19:19 PM

M CHELLE NI LAND reported that her child went to a charter schoo
and she stated opposition for HB 145. She declared that hone
school was a viable alternative to provide a different type of
educati on. She expressed concern that the public schools would
be "left with the higher needs children, with now a greater
[imt on the resources that are available for them"” She
directed attention to Version |, lines [24] - 25, and expressed
concern that the school district would be required to provide
reasonable transportation to the school of choice. She

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 6- April 4, 2011



suggested greater involvenent from the parents as a solution to
the school district needs. She declared that alternatives
al ready exi sted, and she urged opposition to HB 145.

5:23:53 PM

BARBARA HANEY stated her support for HB 145. She said that her
seven children had been home schooled and had attended public
school . She opined that special needs students would receive
the nost benefits. She said that she put her career on hold to
educate her children at honme, and as a result she did not have a
pension. She offered her belief that the rural areas would al so
benefit. She opined that conpetition anong schools would be
healthy, as this would nake schools nore responsive to the
requests of parents.

5:31:40 PM

CHERYL PEYTON stated support for HB 145, and she read from a
prepared statenent: [Included in nenbers' packets] "Parents
know their children better than anyone. Parents are the
rightful authority to choose how and where their children wl
be educated."” She described the process that she had undergone
with her Down's syndrome child, and reported that the
nei ghbor hood school was the only choice offered. She rel ayed
that the consensus for a special needs child was nobst often
"bending to the wll of the neighborhood school." She
concl uded:

Studies show that educational quality inproves when
parents have the fundanmental right to choose where

their children are educated. I believe the
introduction of "market forces" inproves all schools,
and | believe it is especially helpful for special

needs children and famli es.
5:35:42 PM

JOHN TOBEY stated support for HB 145, and said that his daughter
had been in public school, private school, and honme school. He
offered his belief that this was an inportant opportunity to
allow parents to have a freedom of choice for their child's
education, and that the proposed bill wuld allow the public
school systemto inprove through conpetition.

5:39: 50 PM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -7- April 4, 2011



ANDY CLARY expressed support for the proposed CS for HB 145 and
HIR 16. He said that he attended a private school, Anchorage
Christian School. He stated that this was not an insurnountable
shift in education policy. He reflected on the recent Arizona
| aws on school choice. He reported that the standard assessnent
tests and accountability were already occurring in private
schools. He declared that enpirical evidence showed that schoo

choice prograns stinmulated inprovenent in the participant and
public schools conpeting for students.

5:43: 04 PM

NEI L NI CHCOLS stated his support for HB 145, and paraphrased from
a prepared statenent. He offered his belief that the increasing
cost of public education in Anchorage had not delivered inproved
test scores and graduation rates. He opined that the proposed
bill would bring fresh ideas, new resources, and new
opportunities for children.

5:44: 29 PM

ROBERT TIMM NS stated his support for HB 145, and said that it
"was crucial for the interest of our children.” He decl ared
that true conpetition anong the schools, allowing for parenta
and student choice, would have the "single nost positive effect
on vaulting our state to new heights in productivity and
capability."” He declared this to be a mninmal cost way for
Alaska to incentivize students to do their best. He urged
support for HB 145. He relayed that his wife had home school ed
both their children.

5:47:41 PM

KRI STI NA JOHANNES urged support for HB 145 and HIR 16. She
offered her belief that the section of the U S Constitution
whi ch prohibited noney for parochial schools was "an anti-
Catholic animus that was existing at the time in our country and
unfortunately it made it into our Constitution, and it's a
blight on our Constitution, and as a Catholic, whenever | read
that, | feel personally insulted, actually, to be honest."” She
opined that the current system was an economc injustice to
parents.

5:50:18 PM

SHI RLEEN RANNALS stated her support for HB 145 and HIJR 16. She
stated that she had four children, with the youngest in a

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 8- April 4, 2011



Catholic school, which she opined to offer a higher education
and a healthier atnosphere. She stated that she had many
conplaints with the Anchorage School District during the years
her children attended its schools. She offered her belief that
the nost inmportant thing to renenber was that parents had the
right to choose the best education for their children.

5:52:15 PM

CYNTHI A GElI ERVANN, stating her support for HB 145, said the size
of the public school <classes did not allow for individual
attention. She shared that her child now attended a private
school, which allowed for a noral conponent to her education,
but it canme at a personal cost. She stressed the inportance for
parents to have a choice and for the public noney to follow the
chi |l d.

5:55: 08 PM

KARI N ONENS shared that she had four children, had taught in the
Anchorage School District for ten years, and that she supported
HB 145. She relayed that her one child currently in school was
in a private school, as the public schools attenpted to be a one
size fits all system She opined that nore choices enpowered
the children and the parents. She directed attention to the
popul arity of charter schools as an exanple of the support for
school choice programs. She offered her belief that the current
system was not working, and she could not put her children in
t he public school s.

5:57: 02 PM

CONNI E W NGREN, Principal, Holy Nane Catholic School, stated her
support for HB 145 as this would allow parents to place their
children in the school of choice. She reported on the success
of the students that graduate from Holy Nane Catholic School
where standardi zed tests were adm ni stered.

5:59: 01 PM
DAVI D BOYLE stated support for HIR 16, and paraphrased from a
prepared statenent, which read as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :

| would I|ike to testify today on HIR 16, the
constitutional anendnent to the Al aska Constitution.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 9- April 4, 2011



As background, Alaska has what is called a Blaine
anmendnent in its constitution which precludes state
funds going to private and secular schools. This
Bl ai ne anendnment has a very shady history, naned after
U S. Congressman Janes Bl ai ne. These anmendnents were
passed as a direct result of the anti-inmgrant, anti
-Catholic bigotry that was domnant in the 19th and
early 20th centuries. Many states were required to
include Blaine amendnents in their constitutions
before they were allowed to join the union. This was
called the inclusion act of 1899. This is why many
western states have Blaine anendnments in their state
constitutions today.

The U. S. Suprene Court laid the constitutionality of
the Blaine anendnents to rest in its Zelman vs
Si mmons-Harris of 2002 decision. This decision stated
that the federal establishnment clause is not violated
by the participation of religious schools in school
choi ce prograns. Students in Ceveland were given
state vouchers to attend the school of their choice
sectarian or non-sectarian. Religious and non-
religious schools could participate in this voucher
pr ogram Over 60 percent of the students who
participated in this program were at or below the
poverty line. The court held that this governnent aid
reaches religious institutions only by way of
del i berate choices of numerous individual recipients.
Chief justice Rehnquist stated that the court had
rejected simlar challenges three tines.

I n August 2002, the Washington State Bl aine amendnent
was struck down by the 9th G rcuit Court of Appeals by
a vote of 2-1. The decision was based on: "A state
| aw may not offer a benefit to all but exclude sone on
the basis of religion.”

In addition, under the Individuals Wth Disabilities
Act (IDEA), the federal governnent gives funds to
provi de speci al educat i on to chil dren W th
disabilities; it requires districts spend sone of
these funds for children whose parents choose private
(i ncluding religious) schools.

The question to ask now is the Alaska Constitution
unconstitutional ?

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -10- April 4, 2011



The overriding consideration should always be: what
is best for the kids?

The U S. Suprene Court ruled on April 4th, 2011

[today] in a 5-4 decision that the Arizona tuition tax
credit plan was constitutional. The majority wote:
"Awarding sonme citizens a tax credit allows other
citizens to retain control over their own funds in
accordance with their own consciences.” Per justice
Kennedy: the plaintiffs' position "assunmes that incone
should be treated as if it were government property
even if it has not come into the tax collector's
hands.” (Arizona Christian school tuition organization
v. Wnn, no. 09-987).

6: 02: 00 PM

TIM CGEI ERVANN, stating his support for HB 145 and HIR 16, said
that he "would send ny children to the garbage dunp before |
sent 'emto a governnment school, because at least they'd learn a
trade.” He reported that he chose to hone school and then
private education. He opined that "ny property taxes, ny state
nmoney should follow the child to the school of the parent's
choi ce. ™

6: 03:14 PM

CARL ROSE, Executive Director, Association of Alaska School
Boards (AASB), agreed that parents did have a right to choose
the school for their <children, but that the state had a
responsibility, under the Constitution of the State of Al aska,
"to provide a free public education for all school age
children.” He said that the schools were not failing, and that
he detected "an anti-governnment sentinent being attached to
schools.” He stated his adamant di sagreenent with the statenent
of the bill sponsor, Representative Keller, that "it was
intuitively obvious" that private schools out performed public
school s. He offered his belief that HB 145 would create a dua

system of educati on. He directed attention to the costs for
operation, construction of facilities, and transportation which
would need to be included in the fiscal note. He stated that

allowng the funds to follow a student would be far nore costly
than what it was today. He enphasized that the public schools
were not failing and that challenges did exist. He stated his
agreenent with the exercise of choice, but he questioned whether
the state should pay for that choice.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -11- April 4, 2011



6: 08: 00 PM
The commttee took a brief at-ease.

JULI E ZERKEL stated support for HB 145. She said that she was
the parent of a high functioning, autistic child, and that it

was difficult to find workable situations. She offered her
belief that it was difficult for children who did not fit the
public school nobdel. She stated that parents needed a choi ce of

schools for their children.

[Chair Dick passed the gavel to Vice Chair Pruitt for the
duration of the neeting.]

6:14:46 PM

KATHRYN BOLAK said that she was an advocate of pro-choice in
education, and stated her support for HB 145. She said that
choice was inportant and necessary, as the public education
system did not fit every child. She opined that nore choices
woul d rai se the standards in every institution.

6:16: 13 PM

BETTY SMTH stated her support for HB 145, and said that
conpetition would inprove the public schools. She offered her
belief that governnent regulation should not be attached to the
noney. She opined that parents should have a choice of schools,
regardl ess of their incone.

[ HB 145 and HIR 16 were hel d over.]

6:17:31 PM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Education Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 6:17 p. m

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -12- April 4, 2011



